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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited is a
limited company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at 8/F, Tsuen
Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the
marketing and distribution of photographic developing,
processing and printing products and the operations of

retail photographic developing and processing shops.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Fine
Products Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention except for investment properties which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2007. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within

the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interest of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net

assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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22 HAREEITZEBUMBEREER 2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
E2 FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AEBERAFEZHBHBEREXEMT I The Group has adopted the following new and revised
A RGBT ZEBMERELER - REL HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
BEBEEERAMTREEITNSTHHE statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new
REMEFEIN RN E T REEFTER and revised accounting policies and additional disclosures,
RREBHAMNBERRLBEATE the adoption of these new and revised standards and
interpretation has had no material effect on these financial
statements.

BB ERE2% HENMEENERE HKAS 21 Amendment Net Investment in a Foreign
(&15T) Operation

BB EREINK BHEREHN HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts

BB BREERELR Amendments
(s 53T)
BB ERE30% BAEEARZH HKAS 39 Amendment Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
(1E3T) REREEHS Forecast Intragroup
Transactions

BBGHERENR ARABEAEEER HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option
(CSCHD)

8 (ABRUERE BE-BZHERAE HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
REZES) BEHE Arrangement contains a Lease
-REBER

ENPECETEEHBUNT The principal changes in accounting policies are as follows:

(a) BEESEASE 2SI EERST (a) HKAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign

24 | Exchange Rates”
BB TEBS LB 2 ERBIT Upon the adoption of the HKAS 21 Amendment

A BIRESHSRENIERSE regarding a net investment in a foreign operation, all
EAREBYE IR ZRE B exchange differences arising from a monetary item that

WEMEBEELANIESE L ESHES forms a part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
EEANEEEARS I TSN BEE operation are recognised in a separate component of
M ERZEwEL U ARES K equity in the consolidated financial statements
B{E o 3 —# LY R B E2007E38 irrespective of the currency in which the monetary item
318 5% 2006E 38 31 H IF i B 7% 3/ & is denominated. This change has had no material impact
ME AL o on these financial statements as at 31 March 2007 or 31

March 2006.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and

(c)

Measurement”

(i) Amendment for financial guarantee contracts
This amendment has revised the scope of HKAS 39
to require financial guarantee contracts issued that
are not considered insurance contracts, to be
recognised initially at fair value and to be
remeasured at the higher of the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” and the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.
The adoption of this amendment has had no

material impact on these financial statements.

(i) Amendment for the fair value option
This amendment has changed the definition of a
financial instrument classified as fair value through
profit or loss and has restricted the use of the
option to designate any financial asset or any
financial liability to be measured at fair value
through the income statement. The Group had not
previously used this option, and hence the
amendment has had no effect on the financial

statements.

(iii) Amendment for cash flow hedge accounting of
forecast intragroup transactions
This amendment has revised HKAS 39 to permit the
foreign currency risk of a highly probable
intragroup forecast transaction to qualify as a
hedged item in a cash flow hedge, provided that
the transaction is denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity entering
into that transaction and that the foreign currency
risk will affect the consolidated income statement.
As the Group currently has no such transactions,
the amendment has had no effect on these financial

statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an

Arrangement contains a Lease”

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 April
2006, which provides guidance in determining whether
arrangements contain a lease to which lease accounting
must be applied. The adoption of this interpretation has

had no effect on these financial statements.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession

Arrangements

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The revised standard
will affect the disclosures about qualitative information
about the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital; quantitative data about what the
Company regards as capital; and compliance with any
capital requirements and the consequences of any non-

compliance.

HKFRS 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2007. The standard requires disclosures that
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those financial

instruments.

HKFRS 8 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. The standard requires the disclosure of
information about the operating segments of the Group, the
products and services provided by the segments, the
geographical areas in which the Group operates, and
revenues from the Group’s major customers. This standard

will supersede HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, HK(IFRIC)-Int 10, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 11 and HK(IFRIC)-Int12 shall be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006, 1 June 2006, 1
November 2006, 1 March 2007 and 1 January 2008,

respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that the adoption of the
HKAS 1 Amendment, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 8 may result in
new or amended disclosures. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of the other new
and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
significant impact on the results of operations and financial

position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as

to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture operates
as a separate entity in which the Group and the other

parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture entity and the basis
on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint

venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly

or indirectly, over the joint venture; or

(b) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally
not less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered
capital and is in a position to exercise significant

influence over the joint venture.



B RS RAR MY AL

20073 A31H

3.

FEEHBRRRE &)

i R — N
BHEARANDAEBROFEE-—RFIR
002 REELAHHEBEEARE L - 6
YHBREAMBLARADEFNERZE
@

FEEREBREAR CWBREGRMED
M AGEBRERRGERER - XEER
BEAR 2B DUEEERE  BEAE
BEREEcEEFEREREBRR - JIRG
BEEEBERMA -

mE
WENBAAMELE2EHELDERWER -
EBEHRABAEBEATRN 2 BBE
E BREARERIAAEAFEEFEZ
R 2 B o

BBEECEHEDRGSEERBERAER
REE  SEEAEIER  HRAEEAE
AR REREE B R -

BEZIREIESFETRERS  mEE
REEHRITR BRI RRER
B MEEERMETRER -

RETHENS EXBAHMBEAZEHE
BBEAZAESREZEHTRAHEELE 2N
BRZTER ASESEREELENR
REELENARN  MERAEEEERE
BREAESETFTREENREMMER - BD
EEHBEz&EMREMAER :

e AUANEEMSHBBETZESR
BAEBEANREKT R

e FTHBEEBEBEHEINF 1450 ER
EIMBEEZ2ACRBETERRNERES
AMBHzZ—EIHE -

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Associate

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise

significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of an associate are included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
The Group’s interest in an associate is stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any

impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of

acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at
cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be

impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or

group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated:

° represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management

purposes; and

® is not larger than a segment based on either the
Group’s primary or the Group’s secondary reporting
format determined in accordance with HKAS 14

“Segment Reporting”.
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31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an

impairment loss is recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in a subsequent period.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating

unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill and certain financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss
is credited to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for

that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the

Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its parent;

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (c) or
(d); or

(f) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset

or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed upon the transfer from property,

plant and equipment to investment properties.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 5% or over the remaining

lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33'/5%
leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is

depreciated separately.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance

sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of

the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease
for a property which would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,

which reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement

in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement

in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from an owner-occupied property to an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for
as a revaluation. The revaluation surplus is credited to the
income statement to the extent of the impairments
previously charged, while the remaining revaluation surplus
is dealt with as a movement in the asset revaluation
reserve. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant
portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect
of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.

63



B RS R MY AL

20073 A31H

TEESTERREBE (&)

KeEHE
NEERERE 2B ABDERKERETH
BERRMAZENY 9 REEHEY - ik
BEAHBEA  BEEANRECEELIR
FRBDEE  HHSWARBEHRNZESE
RABEER - MEESEAA - £EHAY
ZHEXHREHAREREREBRERX
e

KREAW AN LIBESN ST RREET
IR HRAREBARESERRBALR
HeREAEIBRELHREFHG B2
MESFANE  BERRBZLHBRET
BAELBERS -

BN K EWRE
ERREWRREREBEER JHEENER
BEEBHESPEREZFTESREE -
REEENSUAFENE  HRABKA
EORBBEB AT R - MM ATIRE R
BEMTRERSEMSE U ABRE
BAERXGRATAD B 2ER - Z
LERREWRBERDUEER - HBRERE
THHEKELE BB ABER-

ERMEERE
FEEREFEEAFEE R TR SRR -
HeRMEESL—HAeREERLBERNE -

BT IR 2 EE
MRBFEDKRARBHERRINEZER
REWRECELRERE  EEREERE
EERARRERE (TEEHRELEZRE
FEBXR) URBERTR (LRI
SEZERMNR)FRANRECHEZRER
RBEXTH FHEECREEVEBERE
HRBEBRERERE - BRERESERE
BRRPER -

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in

property, plant and equipment.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are initially measured at fair
value, and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as

through the amortisation process.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a

group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of

the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
that group is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value
of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the

reversal date.

In relation to trade receivables, impairment is made when
there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor)
that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts
due under the original term of an invoice. The carrying
amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when

they are assessed as uncollectible.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised where:

® the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

® the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a

“pass-through” arrangement; or

® the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables and
accrued liabilities and other payables are initially stated at
fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting

would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the

discounted present value amount arising from the passage

of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it
relates to items that are recognised in the same or a

different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

* where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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FESHHEREE (8) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

* where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to

the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods sold;

(b) from the provision of film processing and photo-
finishing services, when the services have been

rendered;

(c) subsidies from a supplier, when the right to receive

payment has been established;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset; and

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model. In valuing equity-
settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the

shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the

beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided

that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for
any modification, which increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award,

as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per

share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS
2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November
2002 that had not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those
granted on or after 1 April 2005.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Prepaid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned

during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in order to
be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance in the event of the termination of
their employment. The Group is liable to make such
payments in the event that such a termination of
employment meets the circumstances specified in the

Employment Ordinance.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and a
defined contribution occupational retirement scheme (the
“ORSO scheme”) under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
schemes. The assets of both schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administered
funds. The Group’s employer contributions to both schemes
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
schemes, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions to the ORSO scheme, which are refunded to
the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules
of the ORSO scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance

with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately

as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value

was determined.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries and an
associate located in Mainland China are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income

statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of subsidiaries located in Mainland China are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the

weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:

(i) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are

leased out on operating leases.

(ii) Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property, and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of

the other assets held by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

(ii) Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (Continued)
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under finance leases), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be
sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for

administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

(iii) Impairment of assets
The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the
level of impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the

impairment testing.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are discussed below.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar lease terms and other
contracts. In the absence of such information, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) by reference to independent valuations; (ii)
current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition and location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences; (iii) recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date of
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iv)
discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount

and timing of cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value include those related to current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates, expected future

market rents and future maintenance costs

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has
to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the
market demand for the product or service output of the
asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are
used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made
if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed, at each financial year end date

based on changes in circumstances.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets or goodwill

The Group determines whether a financial asset or
goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the financial asset or goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the financial asset or cash-generating unit
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. A
change in the estimated future cash flows and/or the
discount rate applied will result in an adjustment to the
estimated impairment provision previously made. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2007 was
HK$35,878,000 (2006: HK$35,878,000). More details
of impairment testing of goodwill are set out in note 18

to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences arising
from impairment on trade and bills receivables and
inventories to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying values of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses and deductible
temporary differences on impairment on trade
receivables and provision against inventories as at 31
March 2007 were HK$6,898,000 (2006: HK$8,183,000),
nil (2006: HK$5,539,000) and HK$34,000 (2006:
HK$37,000), respectively. The amounts of unrecognised
tax losses and temporary differences on impairment on
trade receivables and provision against inventories as at
31 March 2007 were HK$24,975,000 (2006:
HK$31,557,000), HK$141,745,000 (2006:
HK$111,341,000) and nil (2006: HK$5,401,000).
Further details are contained in note 28 to the financial

statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment

reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of the

business segments are as follows:

(a) the wholesale segment engages in the marketing and
distribution of photographic developing, processing and

printing products;

(b) the retail segment engages in the provision of film
processing, photo-finishing services and the sale of

photographic merchandise through retail outlets; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises the
Group’s investment property business together with

corporate income and expense items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the

segments based on the location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost plus

a mark-up of approximately 25% (2006: 28%).
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Notes to Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information of

the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31

2B - March 2007 and 2006.
Wholesale segment Retail segment Corporate and Others Eliminations Consolidated
HEER TEEE LEREMES B} g8
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AERE Segment revenue:
PREFZHE Sales to external customers
REHEA and service income 1,070,916 179,679 - 1,250,595
BREHER Intersegment sales 48,317 - - -
Hitg AR Y E Other income and gains 6,326 1,052 2,506 9,884
ag Total 1,125,559 180,731 2,506 1,260,479
FREE Segment results 106,002 3,010 (4,206) 104,806
FASBAR Interest income and
FABWE unallocated gains 14,666
HHERA Settlement income - - - -
EEBENTER Share of profit of an associate 1,027 - - 1,027
BB AER Profit before tax 120,499
2] Tax 100
REEREA Profit for the year 120,599
Wholesale segment Retail segment  Corporate and Others Consolidated
HEER TEEY TEREMES B
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
HEREHE Assets and liabilities
PEEE Segment assets 289,005 103,501 50,125 442,631
REEAR2BR Interest in an associate 9,607 - - 9,607
APREE Unallocated assets 667,925
BEE Total assets 1,120,163
ARER Segment liabilities 99,371 27,638 8,319 135,328
AABER Unallocated liabilities 9,177
Bag Total liabilities 144,505
Hit A HER Other segment information:
REREIEM Depreciation and recognition of
TS prepaid land lease payments 5,686 13,890 2,606 22,182
nE- -BER Reversal of impairment on items
REREDR of property, plant and equipment - - -
AR Capital expenditure 2,154 34 7,442
RENELTELD Changes in fair value of investment
properties - 900 900
EWREREERE Impairment on trade and
bills receivables 578 - 578
HitEWHERE Impairment on an other receivable - - -
FERE/ (BR) Provision/(write-back of provision)
against inventories 4,865 - 4,529
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Geographical segments
The following table presents revenue and certain asset
and expenditure information of the Group’s
geographical segments for the years ended 31 March
2007 and 2006.

Hong Kong Mainland China Consolidated
B HERL g8
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARKE : Segment revenue:
MEFZHERBREKRA Sales to external customers
and service income 1,036,597 213,998 1,250,595
HtpBER Other segment information:
FEEE Segment assets 906,491 213,672 1,120,163
EREX Capital expenditure 7,180 262 7,442

Wi Httg AR K
BETNAEEZEREE  BEOHEERZH
ZRECHBRFNRRE) R ()R E RS
ZWA e

Wi HERARBE 22 MAT ¢

6.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents (i)
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
returns and trade discounts; and (ii) the income from the

rendering of film processing and photo-finishing services.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

follows:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
Wz - Revenue
ERiHE Sale of goods 1,123,222
R ED AR 7 WA Income from the rendering of film processing
photo-finishing services 127,373
1,250,595
Hib A R & Other income and gains
FI B WA Interest income 14,666
HEWABE (HES) Gross rental income (note 8) 2,506
g 2 2 A Subsidies from a supplier 5,265
HEBE QT WS (K sE20) Gain on disposal of an associate (note 20) -
Ht Others 2,113

24,550
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L PN 7. SETTLEMENT INCOME
R20065F6A30R - AEEE—UETEME On 30 June 2006, the Group entered into an agreement
BRI —EiHE - S 20065 108 20 £ with a major supplier to terminate certain distributorship
RIEEAREBE THE AR LNE T2 agreements with certain subsidiaries of the Group with
HE((REHBZE]) - RELLEHEZE K& effect from 20 October 2006 (the “Termination
THBARTIEHERNE TERZDH Agreement”). Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, the
B WAFRRZEEMERDBREUE WK Group ceased to be the distributor of certain products of
A e this major supplier and received the settlement income from
this major supplier during the year.
BR B A& R 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBBRBAEF S W (GEA) - The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
Notes 2007 2006
g3 HK$'000 HK$°000
HEREMA Cost of inventories sold 934,397
RERBEKAK Cost of services provided 64,513
A il Auditors’ remuneration 1,200
e Depreciation 15 21,492
¥ BER Reversal of impairment on items of

RERBERE" property, plant and equipment* 15 -
EREMLHAS Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 17 690
TREFZ Minimum lease payments under operating leases

BRELEHNES on land and buildings 32,961
HENE  BER Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,

REEAEE/ (WH) - plant and equipment* 1,198
BEEE/ (@) Provision/(write-back of provision) against

inventories** 4,529
FE U BR 1B R (B Impairment on trade receivables* 578
Hit W ERE Impairment on an other receivable* -
W E AR Bad debts recovered* -
REN¥LTEZE" Changes in fair value of investment properties* 16 900
EERAMEX (BEMZTME  Employee benefits expense (including directors’

ZEEMS) remuneration as set out in note 9)

IERE® Wages and salaries 72,652

BREFTEER Pension scheme contributions 2,754

RORBERE Provision for long service payments 615

ARz Less: Forfeited contributions*** -
BREFTEMITE Net pension scheme contributions 3,369

76,021
HEWALE Gross rental income 6 (2,506)
REMBE o REWEEEY  Direct expenses (including repairs and maintenance)

EEMX (BEEERRAE)  arising on rental-earning investment properties 383
HeEBWAFEE Net rental income (2,123)
EREHE BE Foreign exchange differences, net (2,568)
© BRESEEHERGABERIHEMSERX]— * Included in “Other operating expenses” on the face of the

R 5 ER o consolidated income statement.
v REEEERGABERIHEERE]I WK ** Included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
SR o income statement.
**+ JA2007F 3831 B A5 B I 8RR R GBIk *** As at 31 March 2007, the Group had no forfeited contributions

EETBH R 2 R YR A B # X (20006

FE) o

available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in
future years (2006: Nil).
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9. EEXEM 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
FARBEBHERGMBERATNERES Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
EHRB(TEMRA]) REB QARG E the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main
161FRBE2ESMESMT ¢ Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
£8
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
we Fees 760
HihBi < : Other emoluments:
FeRER Salaries and allowances 4,825
R FI AL Discretionary bonuses 750
BARSFEHER Pension scheme contributions 36
6,371
(@ BYKFTES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FAXAFBLFATEETZHREDN The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
T during the year were as follows:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
B Au Man Chung Malcolm 110
HEFM Wong Chi Yun Allan 100
FRE Li Ka Fai David 120
330
FRAUVEHMEMNTFEIFHTES There were no other emoluments payable to the
2B & (20065 : &) - independent non-executive directors during the year

(2006: Nil).
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

Pension
Salaries and  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions remuneration
RifkE
e FeREE FRAMTA HE MeLm
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
20075 2007
HITES: Executive directors:
YN Sun Tai Lun Dennis 920 2,541 602 12 3,245
REE Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 80 865 207 12 1,164
HEE Tang Kwok Tong Simon 80 865 178 12 1,135
3N Sun Tao Hung Stanley 80 618 152 12 862
330 4,889 1,139 48 6,406
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
8|E Liu Hui Allan 90 - - - 90
®H Chiang Yun Rachel 90 - - - 90
510 4,889 1,139 48 6,586
20065 2006
HITES: Executive directors:
BRfm Sun Tai Lun Dennis 90 2,905 384 12 3,391
REE Ng Yuk Wah Eileen 80 960 166 12 1,218
HEE Tang Kwok Tong Simon 80 960 200 12 1,252
250 4,825 750 36 5,861
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
8|E Liu Hui Allan 90 - - - 90
(3] Chiang Yun Rachel 90 - - - 90
430 4,825 750 36 6,041

H £ 2007F K% 200638318 Ik F
E TEANZHFESREIDE
HEEAME -

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006.
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Notes to Financial Statements

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2006: three) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining one (2006: two) non-director, highest paid

employee for the year are as follows:

Group
5
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FeRIER Salaries and allowances 1,596
ERSFBEIHR Pension scheme contributions 24
1,620

HWEWAETIHEZFESRESHNE
BAH:

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

Number of employees
BEAH
2007 2006

& — B # 1,000,000 Nil to HK$1,000,000 - 2

B\ 11. TAX

EBANEHBEFNES BRI 2G5 ER
BOBA BB E17.5% (20065 : 17.5%) 1
REBEE HEAREME ([HE]) ER
FRANFEHEAEEREER ZHER
TRELRBERIT AN - MRBREFETH -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
location in which the Group operates, based on existing

legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
58 Group:

KE-FE Current — Hong Kong
FREFE Charge for the year 7,191
EERERE Overprovision in prior years (1,722)
RE - hERH Current — Mainland China 238
5,707
IR FE B IR (B 5 28) Deferred (note 28) (5,807)
FAREBEIZH (ER) Total tax charge/(credit) for the year (100)
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11. BIE (&)

ERAALEAREMBARDKEE
EBEAEZBRBANER, (BR) B8R
BEMX(ER)  BREEBEFEZ
BIEMX (ER) 28K UREERE

HERBRECHERENT :

PR E 2%

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2007

11. TAX (Continued)

rates is as follows:

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to
profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates for the
location in which the Company and its subsidiaries are

domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax

Group - 2007
£8 —-2007F
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
EO B A i FelS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB A& R Profit before tax 228,545 5,169 233,714
EEB R Statutory tax rate 17.5% 33%
REEBETE 2B Tax at the statutory tax rate 39,995 1,706 41,701
RBEIEEENHE2HAE Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous
periods (374) - (374)
MBTHEEEREBE AR Adjustments in respect of
deferred tax of previous
periods 503 (35) 468
BERRELERBEE Derecognition of deferred
tax assets 6,824 - 6,824
SR UIA Income not subject to tax (33,354) (1) (33,355)
THNHEEZH Expenses not deductible for tax 1,190 1,832 3,022
KEBIFEELE Tax losses utilised from
ZHIEE B previous periods (3,307) - (3,307)
BEAEBEBERBEITE Tax charge at the
ZBIEX W Group’s effective rate 11,477 3,502 14,979
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11. TAX (Continued)

Group — 2006
£ B - 2006F
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B8 A i BEr
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB ADER (F518) Profit/(loss) before tax 129,076 (8,577) 120,499
EERE Statutory tax rate 17.5% 33%
BEEBRERFTE2HE Tax at the statutory tax rate 22,588 (2,830) 19,758
RBEIFEEEHBE2HE Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous
periods (1,722) - (1,722)
RBEFEEELEHE2HAE Adjustments in respect of
deferred tax of previous
periods (5,944) 1,405 (4,539)
Bt & N R FEAR R T Profits attributable to
an associate — (339) (339)
GBI A Income not subject to tax (2,956) (44) (3,000)
IR RS Expenses not deductible
for tax 393 3,450 3,843
BREBTEEELE Tax losses utilised from
ZREEE previous periods (14,101) - (14,101)
BRAEEERBRETE Tax charge/(credit) at the
Z2BEXE (ER) Group’s effective rate (1,742) 1,642 (100)
AATRERFEAEWLRF 12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

BZE2007F3A31ALFE  ROBRRER
BAEEGERNBER B 106,213,000
(2006% : ##73,159,0007T) ' B RAAR
A HEREZ T L5 (ME31(b) °

COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company for the year ended 31 March 2007 includes a
profit of HK$106,213,000 (2006: HK$73,159,000) which has

been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company

(note 31(b)).
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

13. DIVIDENDS
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH-SREBERBE3SMW Interim — HK3.8 cents (2006: HK2.2 cents)
(2006 : BHE2.24) per ordinary share 25,604
RERBH-SREBER Proposed final — HK5.2 cents
A5 24l (2006: HK4.2 cents)
(20065 : B 4.240) per ordinary share 48,881
74,485

RRAEERBREZREASAATRE
RF-RBEZREBEAR LIS &
AEE -

1. AXRAEERREZTEAELAER

&R
@ SREXEF
SREABMEREUTEANE -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

Group
£8
2007 2006
HK$ HK$
B Earnings
RABEBERBRERFEA Profit attributable to ordinary equity
FE 1k 3% holders of the Company 120,496,000
® 5 Shares
FREBRTEER Weighted average number of
nFEF 9 & ordinary shares in issue

during the year

1,163,828,377

(b) EREFEF
AR E Z£2007F K 2006F3A318 1k
FEAMBFCTABEZE2EH -
WA A B I I T E 2007 F & 2006
FIABIALFEZBREERAE
Q o

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share amounts for the years ended
31 March 2007 and 2006 have not been disclosed as no
diluting event existed during the years ended 31 March
2007 and 2006.
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15. % BERRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group
&
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Machinery
land and leasehold and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELH BREER
kgF HEVEREE BERRE RE it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2007%3A31H 31 March 2007
R2006548 18 : At 1 April 2006:
RA Cost 121,400 71,085 110,438 8,860 311,783
ZTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (59,071) (64,717) (82,877) (6,942) (213,607)
RHFE Net carrying amount 62,329 6,368 27,561 1,918 98,176
R2006F48 18 At 1 April 2006, net of
IREFNER accumulated depreciation
HE and impairment 62,329 6,368 27,561 1,918 98,176
2 Additions - 6,195 1,428 1,230 8,853
& Disposals - (231) (891) (223) (1,345)
FRITEREB Depreciation provided
during the year (3,738) (6,472) (8,046) (596) (18,852)
HERR/ (HB) Reversal of impairment/
(impairment) 3,234 - (132) - 3,102
Eff Revaluation upon transfer 23,731 - - - 23,731
BAREME Transfer to investment
properties (63,819) - - - (63,819)
EXAE Exchange realignment 527 24 36 1 588
®2007%3831A8 At 31 March 2007, net of
MR RINE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 22,264 5,884 19,956 2,330 50,434
R2007%38310 : At 31 March 2007:
BA Cost 47,274 55,346 102,785 6,708 212,113
ZTERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (25,010) (49,462) (82,829) (4,378) (161,679)

EEFE Net carrying amount 22,264 5,884 19,956 2,330 50,434
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15. % - BERRE @) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Group
ESE]
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Machinery
land and leasehold and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELH BREBR
kEF HENEEE HERRME AE Ch
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
2006F3A31H 31 March 2006
R2005F48 18 : At 1 April 2005:
BA Cost 119,994 68,558 116,270 8,291 313,113
ZHERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (53,026) (60,110) (75,848) (7,823) (196,807)
BEFE Net carrying amount 66,968 8,448 40,422 468 116,306
R2005F48 18 At 1 April 2005, net of
NBRRFAFTERAE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 66,968 8,448 40,422 468 116,306
#m Additions - 5512 38 1,892 7,442
& Disposals - (737) (4,577) (69) (5,383)
FRTERE Depreciation provided
during the year (5,428) (6,919) (8,772) (373) (21,492)
ERLRE Exchange realignment 789 64 450 - 1,303
R 2006548 18 - At 1 April 2006, net of
NBRRFAFTERAE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 62,329 6,368 27,561 1,918 98,176
R2006F38318 : At 31 March 2006:
A& Cost 121,400 71,085 110,438 8,860 311,783
EXHERRAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (59,071) (64,717) (82,877) (6,942) (213,607)
EEFE Net carrying amount 62,329 6,368 27,561 1,918 98,176

M2007F3A318 > URPEARZHEEL
WREFDIAKREHBAR KB
47,274,0007T (20065 : % ¥ 121,400,000
TIZHEHELTHWRETF  BRAAEBE
26,799,0007T (20065 : ##80,277,000
7t) » HAFE#26,799,0007T (20065 :
#539,640,0007T) K& B ¥ 0T (20065 : B
40,637,0007t) ARl ARBRAHMAL - B
REBEMLHES FETERR L RIE
FrEELEIER  2HRELNEEEHEESL
WREFZHREAR  RIEBBGTERE
172G HANE BERRHFEZH
EHE -

Included in the Group’s leasehold land and buildings with a
total cost of HK$47,274,000 (2006: HK$121,400,000) are
leasehold land and buildings situated in Mainland China
with an aggregate cost of HK$26,799,000 (2006:
HK$80,277,000) as at 31 March 2007, of which
HK$26,799,000 (2006: HK$39,640,000) and nil (2006:
HK$40,637,000) are under long term leases and medium
term leases, respectively. As the related prepaid land lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payment is included in
the cost of leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment in accordance with the
provision of HKAS 17.
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16. REW X 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Group
&
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHZREE Carrying amount at beginning of year 35,850
BEEAYMER Transfer from owner-occupied properties
FEA LS EER and prepaid land lease payments -
AFEAEZ Net loss from a fair value
BB FEE ( MisEs) adjustment (note 8) (900)
ELRAE Exchange realignment 1,008
M3B31BZREE Carrying amount at 31 March 35,958
SEZREVERUATHNFE : The Group’s investment properties are held under the
following lease terms:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
NREBZHRBEIME Medium term leases in Hong Kong 4,100
RFEAREZPEELINE  Medium term leases in Mainland China 31,858
URHPE Rz RBBENYE  Long term leases in Mainland China -
M3A318 @ &iEE At 31 March, at valuation 35,958
EEZREVERABIHTEERMGEME The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
£ 1T (Chung, Chan & Associates)? 2007 HK$103,248,000 as at 31 March 2007 by Chung, Chan &
3ABIERBEREAZREAHEMEREEET Associates, independent professionally qualified valuers, on
B BEMEHRE®103,248,0007T - RE an open market, existing use basis. The investment
MECRKCERNETFE=F HBHEER properties are leased to third parties under operating leases
2 HA M HEIRR M ZE34(a) ° arrangements, further summary details of which are included
in note 34(a) to the financial statements.
EREEREVEZE-—THFBARKER Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are

%107% 108%E ° set out on pages 107 and 108 of the annual report.
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BNLHHEERX 17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
Group
&
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHZREE Carrying amount at beginning of year 10,489
RERER Recognised during the year (690)
BREREYHE Transfer to investment properties -
MW3A31A 2 REE Carrying amount at 31 March 9,799
FAEAR - ZER Current portion included in prepayments,

H fth FE W FRIE Z BN B &8 deposits and other receivables (690)
JEBNERER Non-current portion 9,109

SEESTHHEERAXBRATHENES

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments are held under the

following lease terms:

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
UREBZPEHBENYE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 7,839
RFE Az FEENYE Medium term leases in Mainland China 1,960
M3A31H At 31 March 9,799
[k 18. GOODWILL
Group
-3
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR3IA3MBZHA Cost and net carrying amount at
REHEFE beginning of year and 31 March 35,878
EEREAR Impairment testing of goodwill

BEBEBRAHUB-HERIRETEEY
BEELEM (N2HRER) ETRER
= o

TEEBRSEEEU A NESBEIRR
FRAEEFEMEE  REAQXAEEEN
EZ=ZFHRERERIHE -BEeREHR
B A 2 TR R H 4% (20065 © 4%) ©

Goodwill acquired through a business combination has been
allocated to the retail operation cash-generating unit, which

is a reportable segment, for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the retail operation cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections approved by the
Company'’s directors covering a period of three years. The
discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 4% (2006:
4%).
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18.

19.

e (#)
M2007F3A31HK2006%F3A318 » T&
¥BREEEENZEREEFERATE
EREE o TXHMABEERR S RETEA AT
KEZETEM/MR > BUETHEREN
=

EHEFNR-FARERNRDREEEFEAM
ZEBAFEANCER 2 FPHYER KRR FAHE
RERERE -

FRE-FREDIHRARLE  URER
ReEsEENEBZEERR -

BEER LR -FEERLRZREEED
RBEEFECHESFECHAMNERESR - £
ERRZEERNBERRFEET B -

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the retail operation cash-generating unit for 31 March
2007 and 31 March 2006. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow

projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency

improvements.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and

reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Purchase price inflation — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to inventory price inflation is the forecast
price indices during the budget year from where inventories
are sourced. The values assigned to key assumptions are

consistent with external information sources.

B B A B 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
NG|
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$°000
FLTRG  REE Unlisted shares, at cost 193,540 193,540
PEUS BT BB A R R Amounts due from a subsidiary 662,204 648,385
855,744 841,925
o BNERER o Less: Current portion (60,519) (48,881)
Ik BN HR 26 Non-current portion 795,225 793,044

BT —Z2AFERARIZEARNEENESHE
7B % 601,685,000t (20065 : B #&
599,504,0007t) & FTIE WK B LD & 2K
FHBEER BT EREREEE - E
W BARREBEZREEEEL A FERE -

The amounts due from a subsidiary are unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and repayable on demand, except for an
amount of HK$601,685,000 (2006: HK$599,504,000) which
is not repayable within the next twelve months. The
carrying amounts of the amounts due from the subsidiary

approximate to their fair values.

o1
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Notes to Financial Statements
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AEBEIEMBELRAERNT ¢

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
R/ E SRTEBEBRRES DA EAG
=L SR 3 AMELAEE RAEZB DL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
HiE %
Callas Investments Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property
Limited &8 HK$2 holding
EEFREBRAR g MERA
B2
China-Hongkong British Virgin Ordinary - 100 Investment
Photo Retail Islands/ uss$i holding
Limited Mainland B
REBEZERRAA China 1%
KEBRZEE/ REEZR
BBl it
C.Y. Sun Holdings British Virgin Ordinary 100 - Investment
Limited Islands us$10,000 holding
REELZES B REEZR
10,0003 7T
Fotomax (F.E.) Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Provision of
REZE (GER) DA 58 HK$ 1,000,000 photographic
Za developing and
7 % 1,000,0007T processing services
and retail of
photographic
merchandise
R AL AE B ED R 7
RBERMEE
Fuji Graphic Arts Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Marketing and
Products Co., Ltd. BB HK$10,000 distribution of
ETEORIBMERAF il printing products
78 #10,0007T T S S5 ED I B8 A1
Fuji Medical Products Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Marketing and
Limited O HK$2 distribution of
ErTEBRERAERLA g medical imaging
B2 products
HBEM
Fuji Photo Products British Virgin Ordinary - 100 Purchase agent
(China) Co., Limited Islands/ us$10,000 of photographic
ETEEEM (FE) Hong Kong ZR goods
BERR A REBREZER/ 10,0003 7T RERZER
&8
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19. B A BRER (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
R/ it BERTZERRES A EEAE
=% SR 3:F AMEAEE RAEZBD L EREH
Direct Indirect
HE k=3
Fuji Photo Products Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Marketing and
(China) Co., Ltd. 5B HK$2 distribution of
ELTEEEM (RE) =8 photographic
BRAA BEE2T developing and
processing products
EREREHEREAR
HENE M@
Fuji Photo Products Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Marketing and
Company, Limited O HK$10,000,000 distribution of
ETEEBEMBERAT =8 photographic
7 ¥ 10,000,0007T developing and
processing products
EREREHBY
HENE M@
Great Earnings Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Investments Limited 58 HK$2 MESFE
HEREFRDA g
B2
Imaging and Information Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Marketing and
Products Trading 58 HK$ 1,000 distribution of
Limited (“IIP”) =8 photographic
FEREMNERES 78 ¥ 1,0007T developing and
BRAQAE processing products
EREREHBY
HENE M@
Majestic Income Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Limited BB HK$2 MESE
B EERDA Eg
B2
Orderly Mind Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Enterprises Limited O HK$2 MERE
BRLEEERAR g
B2
Palace Glory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
MERRRQA 58 HK$2 L/EISEC]
g
B2
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19. B A BRER (&) 19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

94

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Company activities
R/ it BERTZERRES A FEEAG
=r! SR 3:F AfEAEE RAEZBD L EFEEH
Direct Indirect
HE B
Pride High Company Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Limited =8 HK$2 MESE
BAERA A g
B2
Sky Rich (Asia) Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Limited =8 HK$2 MESE
AE(EMBRAA Egi
B2
Sky Year Resources Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Property holding
Limited =8 HK$2 MESE
REERERAT Eg
B2
hRERE (LE) PRC/Mainland Registered - 100 Marketing and
EIRESERAR" China capital distribution of
HEHRER us$300,000 printing products
= i & A< in Mainland China
300,000% 7T R EEER
EERENE B
Fuji Photo Products PRC/Mainland Registered - 100 Marketing and
Trading (China) China capital distribution of
Co. Ltd* REl P E A RMB 10,000,000 photographic
ETEERENES = & A< developing
(P E) BRDA A R #10,000,0007T and processing
products
KB ENE M

Y OBREWBLARRUIEBEECEREPEE
REM - WHBEPHAZKEFAEBARE

KEIBEKERTRY -

ERMIIDESERDHEAEEARFERR
FEAFESEAEEFEETENN 22X
NEMBAR - ESEFRA - M5 HEMK
BRazHBaRREBaRIR -

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned foreign

enterprises under the PRC law and are not audited by Ernst &

Young China or other Ernst & Young International member

firms.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the

net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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20. BE N REDS

Notes to Financial Statements

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Group
&

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

BiEEETE Share of net assets - 9,607

BEARFBENT : Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Percentage
of ownership
Nominal value interest

of registered Place of attributable Principal

Name share capital registration to the Group activities
REBEAG

=E! & AR A T & R R & E B BEERZAIL FTEXEH

Fujifilm Medical us$5,500,000 PRC 20 Marketing and

Systems (Shanghai) 5,500,000 JT E distribution of

Co., Ltd. medical

products

HEEBEREMRDH

ZBMERNRAYFHPEATKEMEBHAR

ZKEBRER ALY -

BENR M BRRIBE128318 L8
BEE > BRAEEIR - - BEQARU3
A31BEABERE  UBEAQARAZR

EBH -

TREFEEABRELAR ZUKRENEE

The associate was not audited by Ernst & Young China or

other Ernst & Young International member firms.

The financial statements of the associate, which has a

financial year ending 31 December, were non-coterminous

with those of the Group. The associate used 31 March as its

reporting date to conform with the Company’s reporting

date.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

DREEBHEEEERR ¢ information of the Group’s associate extracted from its
management accounts:

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets = 85,329
&fE Liabilities - (37,296)
W & Revenues - 122,749
Y Fl Profit - 5,133

FEEFRACHERE QAR EEHEWS

BB #6,774,0007T (KfzE6) o

The associate was disposed of during the year, resulting in a

gain on disposal of HK$6,774,000 (note 6).
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21.

22.

23.

FE
SEFEFERRHEECRETHNER -

EWREREE
FEBEHEHBT XS EEURIKRA ET
EHEF-—REFEFRLEAR -BERBEEAR
BREBHERIOBAER EMORIES
WERMAERZ1200 - BUEFHEES
SERE  YHSHEEEHE FAEEH
NBRBEFREBEZERBER  XREFE
BHBHUREREEERR - SEEEA
EEHREEAMERN - BRAEE 2 EER
HRZUTEEFER  LEREXEFEE
[ B e

ZEBAFE  ATAHNBRBERERRE
REEZREBRDAN

21.

22.

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

INVENTORIES
The Group’s inventories principally consist of photographic

developing, processing and printing products for resale.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally
30 days, except for certain well-established customers
where the terms are extended to 120 days. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit pre-approved by senior
management. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit

risk.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
balance sheet date, based on the payment due date and net

of impairment, is as follows:

Group

3
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
ENERZE 3@ A Current to 3 months 16,686 80,311
AZ 618 A 4 to 6 months 808 4,128
7Z91@ A 7 to 9 months 43 357
ofEl B LA £ Over 9 months 1,064 1,901
18,601 86,697

FEECEWRERZIERRE - HIREE
BENFEBESE -

BN -ReREMERRERMA
Exe

AATz At ERFAR A LB 2 B
peRHAMEEREAREERSARE B
HEREEEAAFPEES -

23.

The Group’s trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to their fair

values.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND RENTAL DEPOSITS

The Company’s other receivables and the Group’s
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and rental
deposits are non-interest-bearing and their carrying amounts

approximate to their fair values.
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M. RERAEEEEE 24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
%E AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RERRITERS Cash and bank balances 105,731 420
EHER Time deposits 550,474 -
RekREEHEER Cash and cash equivalents 656,205 420
B FEENERER o Less: Non-current portion (38,785) -
B HA &6 4 Current portion 420
REER  AEBUARE(TARED & At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of
B2RERIRITHE LB 38,686,000 the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
(2006%F : #J8#32,395,0007T) - AR approximately HK$38,686,000 (2006: HK$32,395,000). The
WAEEHZBREEMER  HREPRHRA RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
i Z (OMNEERIRH) RAEE - EERNE under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
EERE)  AEEREZBIHFETINE Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
XB2RITBARBIBAHBLEY - Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
FRE|TZHEBREBERITE B ERERIVE Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
BRE c REASEEHREERZZIME bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
EHERFRE—BR—FULERE Uy varying periods of between one day and over one year
BB ARz EZRERMNE - RERATE depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
BEERRAEHFRZREEREENTE Group, and earn interest at the respective time deposit
E o rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
and long term time deposits approximate to their fair
values.

25. ERREARRE 25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
REBEERRESREZBHTHE BN An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
REREBZRESNMOT : balance sheet date, based on the date of goods purchased

and services rendered, is as follows:
Group
&

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
ENER = 3M@ B Current to 3 months 45,401
3R U E Over 3 months 4,435
49,836

rEBZRNREREERARSE  BREZA The Group’s trade and bills payables are non-interest-
RI30AHMRABE » HIRAEBEEAFEME bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms, and their

E=Id carrying amounts approximate to their fair values.
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26. EftEERHEMEMRNIRE

27

.

28.
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RABRAKE T AERHEMENRE
BRE  HEHEEEAVEES -

26. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Company’s and Group’s accrued liabilities and other
payables are non-interest-bearing and their carrying
amounts approximate to their fair values.

RERBEEEE 27. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

Group

58
2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$’000
READ At beginning of year 2,810 2,195
BEINRE Additional provision 162 615
Ve Payment (233) -
M3B31H At 31 March 2,739 2,810

FEBECHBRBETB(BEEMN) AHEARD
BEBEMZATRERRRBRB S HBE
HBEMBMERRMEIMEERF AR -
HEBEHDERBZEEAREECRBE
AN HEESEMER 2 UREERZRREH

BEEzREFEMNMEL -

I 5E B 1]

FREEHEEEREEZHOT :

EEREAE

The Group provides for the probable future long service
payments expected to be made to employees under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, as further explained
under the heading “Employee benefits” in note 3 to the
financial statements. The provision is based on the best
estimate of the probable future payments which have been
earned by the employees from their services to the Group
as at the balance sheet date.

. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during
the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Group
A%E

Depreciation

allowance Losses available
Revaluation of in excess for offset
property, plant of related  against future
and equipment depreciation taxable profits Total
ickelicl A HEE
EXLY/ES TEERZ RRERB
BERZE TERHE wH BB @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
M 2005F4F 1 H At 1 April 2005 - 308 - 308
FRARBEZRN @/ Deferred tax charged/(credited)
() ZEERE (FEE11) to the income statement
during the year (note 11) - 4,355 (2,575) 1,780
R 2006F3H31H At 31 March 2006 and
% 2006F 4R 1H 1 April 2006 - 4,663 (2,575) 2,088
ERNERRNB /() Deferred tax charged/(credited)
ZIEERE (K1) to the income statement
during the year (note 11) - (640) 1,119 479
RBEAERNBZELESE Deferred tax charged to equity 3,057 - - 3,057
R2007F3A31H At 31 March 2007 3,057 4,023 (1,456) 5,624
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28. EEBIEH (& 28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

BEEBEEE Deferred tax assets
Group
]
Depreciation
expense in Losses
excess of Impairment  available for
Provision related on trade offset against
against depreciation and bills  future taxable
inventories allowance receivables profits Total
BBRBHE AR
SHE2 BAEREY  RRERH
FERME TEER KEBHE ANZEBS @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R 2005F 458 1H At 1 April 2005 (3,815) (318) - - (4,133)
ERARBERENR/ Deferred tax charged/
(Bm) 2 EERE (credited) to the income
(M 11) statement during the
year (note 11) 3,778 (218) (5,539) (5,608) (7,587)
2006F3A318 R At 31 March 2006 and
2006548 18 1 April 2006 (37) (536) (5,539) (5,608) (11,720)
FRREBRERME Deferred tax charged
ZELERE to the income statement
(ME&E11) during the year (note 11) 3 415 5,539 166 6,123
R2007F3A31H At 31 March 2007 (34) (121) - (5,442) (5,597)

MR2007F3A310  AEEEBZREEE
5 B % 24,975,000 (2006F : B
31,557,0007t) * ARAHBHERHEERSR
7 M 141,745,0007C (20065 @ B #
116,742,0007t) » AT REZEMERE AU
EEEEBBARRRZERBERN - AR
RERBEEDREE —RERHBETEE
RREEENHBATHR - ML KRER
ZEBBRUNBESEZBEAR-

R2007F3A318  BAKEKE QR RE
ERRAETRERRZEABEmS » L&
BEARRARZELREE E (2006F
&) DEEUTESTIESZSERELRR
BT FEIIBK

AR A A E R R B 2 FRIE I RS
‘'R

At 31 March 2007, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$24,975,000 (2006: HK$31,557,000) and
deductible temporary differences of HK$141,745,000 (2006:
HK$116,742,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses and deductible
temporary differences as they have arisen in subsidiaries

with uncertain future operating profit streams.

At 31 March 2007, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2006: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries and the associate as the Group has no

liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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29. & A< 29. SHARE CAPITAL
'@ Shares
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$°000
EE Authorised:
& i@ 1% 2,000,000,0008% 2,000,000,000 (2006: 2,000,000,000)
(2006 : 2,000,000,0008%) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BREEEY — A 200,000 200,000
EEITRHE Issued and fully paid:
ZiER1,163,828,377&% 1,163,828,377 (2006: 1,163,828,377)
(2006%F : 1,163,828,377k%) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BREEEBE-A 116,383 116,383
R Share options
RARBERETE ZFHFBHAMERERM T Details of the Company’s share option schemes are included
30° in note 30 to the financial statements.
30. & R R & 30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
ARATRARBRMBREH RSB EEKINME The Company operates share option schemes for the
HEEEERSHEEMS L BRETE - purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.
EATR2002F8A30RTZRREBEFAE In the Company’s annual general meeting held on 30
£ ALARRRBB-EERRAER UK August 2002, an ordinary resolution was passed by the
MBEEET 2 ELTRAUFI7TEREZH Company’s shareholders for the adoption of a new share
BRESE ([HETE]1)  URKLEARAT option scheme (the “New Scheme”) in compliance with the
R199458A3 IR MMz EBREE (8 amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and the
Ell - BFtERLE KQARTEBIE termination of the Company’s old share option scheme (the
R EEMERE  EREFERLEARY “Old Scheme”) adopted on 31 August 1994. Upon
ZHEBREEESY Y ARBET MK termination of the Old Scheme, no further options can be
XFLATHE © granted thereunder but all options granted prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the provisions of the Old Scheme.
Bz EERSHE BREAQAAZES Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the
(BEREBIYIFPTESE) AEEHMIE Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
E-FEBERKREHES  T~5EEE directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods
FAEERFEREZQAT - FAREAEE and services to the Group, customers of the Group, any
RAHR BRIHMBIITXSHRERS - entity in which the Group holds any equity interest, any
BHAA BB XKE - AEH - 2EER agent, advisor, consultant, strategist, contractor,
BEX SHAKEEEMUREARMBITZE subcontractor or expert that provides research,
ZREBA - development or other technological support to the Group or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group.
FARBEFE  TERBFFIRHER In the current and prior years, no share options were
FE o Fat 8120028843045 - MERIEH granted under the New Scheme. The New Scheme became
HESEES  TRBEZBRBIOFERDA effective on 30 August 2002 and, unless otherwise
B - cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from

that date.
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30. B R RESTE (@) 30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

RIEBRESE > BRATREMERTE
ZEESHBEBEREIIEN2002F8A30A1T
FEHERATATECHITRH10% B
2006 K 20075 3H318 » HLEREE
RFFHETHRTEZBERE - REM12
BAEE REEFHHEAZTEERKSHEE
CEREUTRTROZESHEHRRALD
AEBCTBITROZ 1% ELHERHZHME
HIBEREEERRASLESKREE -

BAQREESE  THASRETERRNM
Lo AMBHBALETFHERE BSEES
B EHIATEERE o bH o MREM12
BARFAABETERRABILFERITES
BHECEMAHBALT 2BREBRARAQT
TEHCETRM20.1%HEE (REZHE
BREZEAAATARGERTE) BRBY
5,000,000t BIZBSEERRAS LES
BRI o

REBRECENTNREN B HE28H
RERMR - EABREZENSAIRERE
1T EREBREZTHEBHESEE
RETEBHEMBEYNEREZOAHE
FRZRIOFZEEHRFRAEL -

BRETEERESERE - EREBIRU
T=FEz&BE (VA 2AROREHRE
A (REARRZR)EEBHEXEFE
AT (MBXA]) 2 WHE: HEREEN
i BEATSER S B A A B IR 0 RS
ZEHRTE D RGUNEAFAROEME -

BREYTFARTFHEEAZTAEREIRREKR
ELRRZEN -

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the share option
schemes is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at 30 August
2002. At 31 March 2006 and 2007, there were no
outstanding share options granted under either the Old
Scheme or the New Scheme. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the New Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in

a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-
month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in

advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer. A consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the offer of a grant of an option.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later

than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options, which must be a trading
date; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of

the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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31. % 1E

(a)

(b)

%£m
AEEEBURREERBEFE
2B BHHBREEOEZHRAM

HEBE -

Notes to Financial Statements
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31. RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 50 of the financial statements.

AT (b) Company
Share Capital
premium redemption Contributed Retained
Notes account reserve surplus profits Total
Wit B EEERE BAEDHE EHRG REEA ek
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R2005F 45 18 At 1 April 2005 478,773 1,619 193,340 1,620 675,352
EERF Profit for the year 12 - - - 73,159 73,159
20065 H H i 8. 2006 Interim dividend 13 - - - (25,604) (25,604)
2006F KA EIRE 2006 Proposed final dividend 13 - - - (48,881) (48,881)
R2006% 38318 At 31 March 2006 and
K% 2006548 18 1 April 2006 478,773 1,619 193,340 294 674,026
EERR Profit for the year 12 - - - 106,213 106,213
2007E R HRE 2007 Interim dividend 13 - - - (44,225) (44,225)
2007FEBIRARERE 2007 Proposed final dividend 13 - - - (60,519) (60,519)
R2007E3831H At 31 March 2007 478,773 1,619 193,340 1,763 675,495

AATZERBRGAMBBHELQR
Rz 2D FEBBAQTMEERR
BRMBETZROZEEEZBD &
BRFEI1981FDEE (BB » —
BARARETERTEERRSM
HREREEDIR ©

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a
company may make distributions to its members out of

the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.
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32. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
M3AZIAREEE Cash and cash equivalents for
BERZEAER the purpose of the consolidated
BeZEEEE (MsE24) balance sheet as at 31 March (note 24) 656,205
SRIE 8 R R ET HIBR R Non-pledged time deposits with
BEBBEB=/A original maturity of more than
ZEHER three months when acquired (62,099)
M3A3IAGZERS Cash and cash equivalents for the
RBRZREER purpose of the consolidated cash
Re%EHER flow statement as at 31 March 594,106
33. AREE 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) REEH  REBHRERRABHEZIA (a) At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not
BENT : provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
Group Company
£8 N
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BN =N Guarantees given to
FrERAT banks in connection
FEFEHER with facilities
granted to
subsidiaries 714,000
ADARMMB AR AERITEEMN Out of the HK$714,000,000 (2006: HK$714,000,000)
B # 714,000,000 ( 20064 : B ¥ corporate guarantees to banks in respect of banking
714,000,0007t) ZHER » HPEMAE facilities granted to subsidiaries, bills payable totalling
15 78 % 7,880,000t (20065 : B #& HK$7,880,000 (2006: HK$29,311,000) were utilised by
29,311,0007T) REEHEEHB AR the subsidiaries at the balance sheet date.
=A -
b FR BERADASEEREEHAR (b) During the year, the Inland Revenue Department issued

o AEEHEBALEEZENELD
ARNBEEFEEZEFREY
221,000,000t ° ANEBIBE EREFE
BERUEHELBEERER 3
RAXEBERANBAXIESAEER
WYE  HARESRABEMTZE
HHWERBER > 20078383181 ®
fEH B o

an enquiry letter to the Group in relation to the setting
off of tax losses of HK$221 million which were carried
forward by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in
prior years. The Group is now gathering relevant
information to support the setting off of the tax losses,
and the directors are of the opinion that there is
adequate evidence to support the Group’s position. As
the directors considered that it is premature to draw a
conclusion on the possible outcome of the enquiry, no

provision was made as of 31 March 2007.
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34. REMNWRH

(a)

(b)

31 March 2007

HAEA
AEBRBELEHATHELEARE
ME (MBRERMTE16) » KREFITE
A 1E55 (20064 : 2E9%F) -
HERAT—MBREEFEXZTRER
REERTRIEHAERES -

M2007F 38318 AEBEFEBAF
I Z A M EERAmMARER
Wz HEHESBEINBHOT :

Notes to Financial Statements

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to
the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from one to five years (2006: two to nine years). The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market

conditions.

At 31 March 2007, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating

leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

Group
5
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$°000
15 R Within one year 3,809 830
2Z5F (BEER2E) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 6,378 327
55 #% After five years - 191
10,187 1,348
AMEA (b) As lessee

AEERLEHANZHAEETEE
FmYE  YEAPEESTEAH!
Z 3% (2006%F : 1E5F)

R2007F3A8310 » AEEHR T AR
W REHAMAEARRRZ 2 &E
AEBEFHPOT ¢

The Group leases certain of its retail outlets under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for retail outlets
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three

years (2006: one to five years).

At 31 March 2007, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

Group
58
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$°000
1F£R Within one year 26,999 27,383
2ES5F (BREER2E) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 21,943 21,470
48,942 48,853

REER > AQAUEEALERE
ZHE (20065 : #|) o

The Company did not have any operating lease

arrangements as at the balance sheet date (2006: Nil).
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35.

36.

BEEALRS

(a) TENFE ReRHEMERREBER—
EHBARLEBRZAREH B
5,996,0007t (20064 : ##) - HBEIK
H - REREBEBEERY -

by AEBZEFEEBEAEARAARQATE
L ESMEeE—SHBRANTE
wEMEEO -

BEEREEEEREE

AEBzTEUBTEGRATRRITER
RERER ZEEMTAZEIEANER
FEEXBERES - AREEAZEAM
ERMEEREE  PINEHREREREEUR
BNRERRE  YEEBHEEBEL -

REBEFE  AREZHE-—BERATETE
HUMHTA-

AEENEIAEMEEcETEZAKBANER
B EERABRAHESER - ESSR
REAZEESERBRZEE  WHMAOT -

S BE L B
AEERXZMESMERR - AEEEEH
BEEREEEEMUEANREE AN ZE
BitEzWE BARRX - AKEZEY
EE BMERRZEIZUAREBRERTI
B AEBEEHIIERR  BERREAET
RARBzERZFMmMESL - BA - AKE
BIEREPEINERS 2 AR o A - &K
SEEEMRTEERRRENERE - WL
RARZEESBE2H HERE o

FEERE

AEEAEHERIAREEAZE=ZAR
5o AEBBRRERMERAGEKRIAR
GRrEFETEABEER - 34 ~&H
SEEAERERRELS NI EKRARKE
B  AEBEERR2H#BENMBRE
MfsE22 o

35.

36.

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables is an amount due from a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary totalling HK$5,996,000
(2006: Nil) which is unsecured, non-interest-bearing

and has no specific terms of repayment.

(b) The Group’s key management personnel are the
directors of the Company and further details of
directors’ remuneration are included in note 9 to the

financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and bank balances and time deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade and

bills payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall

be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of

these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from revenue, purchases or expenses of
operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency. The Group’s monetary assets, financing and
transactions are principally denominated in RMB and HK$.
The Group is exposed to the foreign exchange risk arising
from changes in the exchange rate of HK$ against RMB. At
present, the Group does not intend to seek to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. However, the
Group will constantly review the economic situation and its
foreign exchange risk profile, and will consider appropriate

hedging measures in future as may be necessary.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant. Details of the Group’s credit

policy are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.
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37

EERE ()

rEEBHMEREE (FEEERAERAS
ZEEE  TEHMERREMSH B2k AW
BWRE) 2FERR - IREHHTTEE
B2RE  MBRARBRERZETIAZEKA
=i

HRASEBRSHOCRARBEAZE=A
X5 URBEERER -

REBE SR
FEESFEERBRRECBERR  XHD
BREASZHIBAESREERR - #EUR
ERBEESFER

it B R R
BEEEN2007F68 28 HLER BRERITIL
BMEEE -

36.

37.

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2007

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, time deposits,
and prepayments, deposits and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparties, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for

collateral.

Liquidity risk
The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing policy
and strives to ensure that it maintains sufficient cash and

credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2007.



